Table. Clinical and biological characteristics of mothers and children with congenital syphilis, Réunion	Island, 2010*
--	---------------

	Mother				Child				
Year of diagnosis	Age, y	Time of syphilis screening	Duration of treatment, d	Presence and stage of disease	Positive serologic titer test results	Gestation, wk	Clinical signs		
2008	16	>13 wk gestation	5 d BD	Probable secondary syphilis at first trimester	TPHA, VDRL, FTA-ABS	34	None		
2008	25	Unknown	2 d AD	NA	TPHA, VDRL, FTA-ABS	34	None		
2008	16	AD	14 d AD	Primary syphilis at third trimester	TPHA, VDRL, FTA-ABS	38	None		
2009	26	>13 wk gestation	17 d BD	NA	TPHA, VDRL, FTA-ABS	31	Present		
2009	18	>13 wk gestation	2 d BD	NA	TPHA, VDRL	32	Present		
2009	22	>13 wk gestation	1 d BD	NA	TPHA, VDRL	32	Present		
2009	37	After delivery	1 d AD	NA	TPHA, VDRL	38	None		
*BD, before delivery; TPHA, Treponema pallidum hemagglutination assay; VDRL, Venereal Disease Research Laboratory; FTA-ABS, fluorescent									

treponemal antibody absorption; AD, after delivery; NA, not applicable.

Our report highlights an alarming situation in Réunion Island. Reemergence of CS after the increase of early syphilis in women of childbearing age must be considered as a public health alert, especially in countries where health care is supposed to be efficient. CS is easy to prevent with adequate screening of the mother and good follow-up of seropositive parturients.

The results of our study permitted reinforcement of the syphilis mass screening and awareness campaign regarding this sexually transmitted infection in the general population and medical corps. Although it is unrealistic to expect complete eradication of primary and secondary syphilis in communities, a minimal increase of CS rates should trigger reinforcement of these prevention policies.

Acknowledgments

We thank the staff of all pediatric, gynecology, laboratory, and medical information departments who participated in this study.

Juliana Ramiandrisoa, Lydéric Aubert, Emilie Boidin Lespine, Jean-Luc Alessandri, Pierre-Yves Robillard, Marc Bertsch, Anne Gallay, Véronique Goulet, and Eric D'Ortenzio Author affiliations: Regional Office of French Institute for Public Health Surveillance in the Indian Ocean, Saint-Denis, Réunion Island, France (J. Ramiandrisoa, L. Aubert, E.B. Lespine, E. D'Ortenzio); Regional Hospital, Saint-Denis (J.-L. Alessandri, P.-Y. Robillard); Centre Hospitalier Gabriel Martin, Saint-Paul, Réunion Island (M. Bertsch); and French Institute for Public Health Surveillance, Saint-Maurice, France (A. Gallay, V. Goulet)

DOI: http://dx.doi.org/10.3201/eid1711.101925

References

- 1. World Health Organization. The global elimination of congenital syphilis: rationale and strategy for action. Geneva: The Organization; 2007.
- Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. Congenital syphilis—United States, 2003–2008. MMWR Morb Mortal Wkly Rep. 2010;59:413–7.
- McFarlin BL, Bottoms SF, Dock BS, Isada NB. Epidemic syphilis: maternal factors associated with congenital infection. Am J Obstet Gynecol. 1994;170:535–40.
- Sheffield JS, Sanchez PJ, Morris G, Maberry M, Zeray F, McIntire DD, et al. Congenital syphilis after maternal treatment for syphilis during pregnancy. Am J Obstet Gynecol. 2002;186:569–73. doi:10.1067/mob.2002.121541
- Tikhonova L, Salakhov E, Southwick K, Shakarishvili A, Ryan C, Hillis S. Congenital syphilis in the Russian Federation: magnitude, determinants, and consequences. Sex Transm Infect. 2003;79:106–10. doi:10.1136/sti.79.2.106

Address for correspondence: Eric D'Ortenzio, Institut Pasteur de Nouvelle-Calédonie, 9-11 Ave Paul Doumer, BP 61 98845 Nouméa Cedex, New Caledonia, France; email: ericdortenzio@ gmail.com

Reduced Susceptibility to Vancomycin in Staphylococcus aureus

To the Editor: I read with interest the article by Aguado et al. (1). I congratulate the authors for their high-quality research and would like to make 2 brief comments.

My first point regards the mechanism by which methicillinsusceptible *Staphylococcus aureus* (MSSA) with reduced susceptibility to vancomycin would also acquire decreased susceptibility to β -lactams. The authors "hypothesize that certain structural modifications might also occur in the cell wall of strains with high vancomycin MIC, including a thicker cell wall as it has been described in MRSA [methicillinresistant *S. aureus*]." In addition to cell wall thickening, possible

LETTERS

mechanisms could include reduction in autolysis (2,3) and in the cell wall content of penicillin binding protein 4 (PBP4) (3). A study of MSSA isolates has shown a reduction in autolysis and in the bactericidal activity of oxacillin after development of intermediate vancomycin susceptibility (2). Lower content of PBP4 and decreased autolysis were reported in MRSA isolates after reduced susceptibility to vancomycin developed after exposure to this antimicrobial drug (3). Decreased PBP4 has been associated with reduced methicillin susceptibility in S. aureus (4).

Second, knowing whether the authors had the exact vancomycin MIC of the isolates by broth microdilution to compare with the Etest results would be interesting. In the article, they only state that "all 99 MSSA strains were susceptible to vancomycin (MIC <2 μ g/mL) by the broth microdilution method." Although difficult to compare (because Etest dilution progression is arithmetic and broth microdilution is performed with a geometric dilution), some authors have found substantial differences between the vancomycin MIC results given by these 2 methods (5). These differences could have major laboratory and clinical implications.

Marcelo J. Mimica

Author affiliation: Santa Casa School of Medicine, São Paulo, Brazil

DOI: http://dx.doi.org/10.3201/eid1711.110799

References

- Aguado JM, San-Juan R, Lalueza A, Sanz F, Rodríguez-Otero J, Gómez-Gonzalez C, et al. High vancomycin MIC and complicated methicillin-susceptible *Staphylococcus aureus* bacteremia. Emerg Infect Dis. 2011;17:1099–102. doi:10.3201/ eid1706.101037
- Pillai SK, Wennersten C, Venkataraman L, Eliopoulos G, Moellering R, Karchmer A. Development of reduced vancomycin susceptibility in methicillin-susceptible *Staphylococcus aureus*. Clin Infect Dis. 2009;49:1169–74. doi:10.1086/605636

- Sieradzki K, Tomasz A. Alterations of cell wall structure and metabolism accompany reduced susceptibility to vancomycin in an isogenic series of clinical isolates of *Staphylococcus aureus*. J Bacteriol. 2003;185:7103–10. doi:10.1128/ JB.185.24.7103-7110.2003
- Wyke AW, Ward JB, Hayes MV, Curtis NA. A role in vivo for penicillin-binding protein-4 of *Staphylococcus aureus*. Eur J Biochem. 1981;119:389–93. doi:10.1111/j.1432-1033.1981.tb05620.x
- Mason EO, Lamberth LB, Hammerman WA, Hulten KG, Versalovic J, Kaplan SL. Vancomycin MICs for *Staphylococcus aureus* vary by detection method and have subtly increased in a pediatric population since 2005. J Clin Microbiol. 2009;47:1628–30. doi:10.1128/ JCM.00407-09

Address for correspondence: Marcelo J. Mimica, Santa Casa School of Medicine– Pediatrics and Pathology, Rua Cesario Mota Jr, 112, Departamento de Pediatria, Quinto Andar, São Paulo 01221-020, Brazil; email: mjmimica@hotmail.com

In Response: We appreciate the comments by M. J. Mimica (1). We agree that mechanisms other than increased cell wall thickness, such as decreased autolysis, metabolic changes, and reduction in the cell wall content of penicillin binding protein 4, characterize Staphylococcus aureus isolates, and they could explain this reduced susceptibility not only to vancomycin but also to β-lactam antimicrobial drugs. A recently published report by Holmes et al. (2) confirms this hypothesis. That study showed that S. aureus vancomycin MIC \geq 1.5 µg/mL, determined by Etest, was associated with a significantly higher death rate for patients with methicillin-susceptible S. aureus bacteremia irrespective of the type of antimicrobial drug used.

Unfortunately, the vancomycin MIC determined by broth microdilution could not be compared with the Etest results because all our isolates had a MIC by broth microdilution that oscillated between 0.5 and 1.0 µg/ mL. No isolate had a MIC of 2 µg/ mL. In the study by Holmes et al., vancomycin MICs were higher by Etest than by broth microdilution (1); however, all isolates were considered vancomycin susceptible by Clinical and Laboratory Standards Institute broth microdilution methods. The authors pointed out that they also found that increased mortality rate was associated with increased broth microdilution MIC (data not shown), although the trend was not so prominent (2).

A prospective study would be required to specifically investigate the relationship between vancomycin MIC and outcome of *S. aureus* bacteremia. Our group is performing such a prospective study that we hope will enable us to shed light on this relevant topic.

Jose Maria Aguado, Rafael San-Juan, Antonio Lalueza, Francisca Sanz, Joaquin Rodríguez-Otero, Carmen Gómez-Gonzalez, and Fernando Chaves

Author affiliation: University Hospital "12 de Octubre," Madrid, Spain

DOI: http://dx.doi.org/10.3201/eid1711.111212

Reference

- Mimica MJ. Reduced susceptibility to vancomycin in *Staphylococcus aureus* [letter]. Emerg Infect Dis. 2011;17:2083– 4.
- Holmes NE, Turnidge JD, Munckhof WJ, Robinson JO, Korman TM, O'Sullivan MV, et al. Antibiotic choice may not explain poorer outcomes in patients with *Staphylococcus aureus* bacteremia and high vancomycin minimum inhibitory concentrations. J Infect Dis. 2011;204:340–7. doi:10.1093/infdis/jir270

Address for correspondence: Jose Maria Aguado, Unit of Infectious Diseases University Hospital "12 de Octubre," Av Andalucia km 5,400, Madrid, Spain; email: jaguadog@ medynet.com